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Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques
King Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud
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His Royal Highness Prince

Mohammed bin Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud
Crown Prince, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister

of Defense



In the Name of Allah, the Most Beneficent, the Most Merciful
Report of the Board of Directors to the Shareholders of City Cement Company
For the Fiscal Year Ended 31/12/2020

Presented to the General Assembly of the Company

Dear shareholders,

The Company's Board of Directors is pleased to present to you its annual report on
the performance and business results of your company for the fiscal year 2020,
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1. Company's Business Activity

City Cement Company (CCC) produces cement of various kinds in its Marat plant with an annual production
capacity of 3.65 MT,

2. Company's Business Results
1-Sales & Profits:

The volume of cement sold during 2020 amounted to 2.93 MT, compared to 269 MT in 2019, an increase of
8.92% attributable to increased demand for cement.

CCC was able to make good profits despite competition. 2020's gross profits amounted to SR (256.96) million, com-
pared to SR (231.11) millionin 2019, an increase of 11.18% resulting from the increase in the quantity sold. 2020's
net profits totaled SR (220.49) million, compared to SR (190.09) million in 2019, an increase of 15.99% attributable
1o the increase in the quantity sold as well as other revenues and A slight decrease in the administrative expenses

in addition to a decrease in the zakat expense.

Sales ®  Net Profits

2016 2017/ 2018 2019

e The chart below shows the development of net sales and net profits during the five years from 2016 to 2020:

2016-2020 Net Sales & Net Profits (SR million)




2. Production:

The plant’s production of clinker in 2020 amounted to 2.021 KT (i.e. 650% of the production capacity), compared to
2,011 KT in 2018, anincrease of 0.49%. Total inventory at the end of the year equaled 550 KT, compared to 1.301
KT, a decrease of 57.7%.

3. Future Outlook:

In 2020, the total demand for cement sales in the Kingdom improved, reaching 51.081 KT compared to 42.323 KT
in 2019, with a growth rate of 17.14%. The Company expects that demand growth will, God willing, continue to

recover in the coming vear.

4. Company's Revenues Geographically Distributed:

All sales of the Company were within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, as shown in the geographical breakdown below:

(Saudi Riyals)

Geographical Breakdown of CCC Revenue

Total Revenue Central Region Western Region Eastern Region

572,729,687 510,021,267 56435811 6,272,609

[ll. Future Projects & Plans

CCCis developing and implementing several policies and projects to rationalize costs and operating expenses and

enhance its overall performance, including:

1. Alternative Fuel Project:

The Company is working to develop additional sources of alternative fuel to reduce dependency on petroleum fuels,
reduce carbon emissions and preserve the environment, in line with the Kingdom»s Vision 2030.

IV. Loans

The Company declares that as at 31/12/2020 the Company had no outstanding loans payable to banks or
any other institutions. However, the Company has in place credit facility agreements with local banks gov-
erned by the terms and conditions of Islamic finance, totaling SR 90.743.694.

14 | Annual Report 2020

V. Subsidiaries

(CCC has no subsidiaries but has two wholly-owned company branches.

: - Share , Shareholding
Main Activity Country of HO & Establishment

Capital Percentage

(CC Contracting

Specialized subcontracting Branch KSA 100%
Branch

Green Solutions Envi- Provision of environmental
Branch KSA 100%

EpnEREISENEESE@M solutions for waste treatment

VI. Statutory Payments to Government Agencies

Outstanding
payables till the Paid during the . -
Brief Description
end of the annual year

financial period

The Company is subject to the zakat and tax

regulations in force in Saudi Arabia. A provi-
11,656,244 9,711,421 sion for zakat is made on an accrual basis. The
Company obtained the finalassessment certif-
icates for the years 2006-2016.

45320158 6,955,627 The Company is subject to the zakat and tax

regulations in force in Saudi Arabia. These are

paid on a monthly basis within the statutory

Withholding Tax 823,735 - time limit based on previous month's payables.

The Company is subject to the Social Insur-
GOSI Contributions 3,016,507 253,586 ance Law. GOSI contributions are recognized

on an accrual basis.

Fees for the exploitation of raw materials are
Quarrying Fees 19,466,761 18,852,705 paid in respect of licenses for raw material

quarries.




Social responsibility and community service are among the priorities of the Company. CCC has done, and is still
doing, a great deal to support all the requirements of the neighboring areas, including sponsorships and devel-
opment and awareness-raising contributions covering religious, cultural, social, sports and other walks of life.
CCCis keen to contribute to everything that benefits and has added value to society and its various segments,
building on strategic plans consistent with the Company's activities and the Kingdom's Vision 2030 in terms

of environmental and knowledge initiatives, thus contributing to a thriving social fabric.
a) Donations and Social Contributions:

1. Supported Irtigaa Program - Ministry of Education, Marat High School.

2. Sponsored a visit by the Governor of Riyadh Region - Marat Governorate.

3. Supported the Health Endowment Fund to confront COVID-19 - Ministry of Health.

4, Supported the Charitable Association for Rheumatic Diseases.
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CCC affirms its commitment to the implementation of all requirements as per Saudi and international standards to
maintain environmental integrity under the supervision and monitoring of Saudi Arabia's General Authority of Me-
teorology and Environmental Protection, while giving full consideration to maintaining the quality of its products.

CCC has received many quality certificates and international awards, including:
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SASO Quality Mark (SOM) for adherence to the highest standards of quality

Latest version of the ISO 90012015 Quality Management System Certification

Latest version of the ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
Certification

Latest version of the BS OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety Man-
agement System Certification

Latest version of the EN ISO 50001:2011 Energy Management System Certification

QC 100 GOLDEN

The Green Era Award for Sustainability

\ YV |
i 0C 100 PLATINUM
!

{ | Global CemFuels Award for Alternative Fuels
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¢) Environmental Social Governance:

Environmental social governance is defined as the environmental policy that calls for sustainable development and
the management of all human, political, social, and economic activities. This concept is the basis for the attention
that the Company pays to sustainable development by diversifying its energy sources. Since 2015, the Company has
found solutions to rationalize the consumption of petroleum fuels and gradually substitute them with alternative
fuels, and invested in a unit intended for utilizing wasted heat to generate energy with a view to producing clean
energy of up to 16 megawatts, and to find alternative raw materials to reduce carbon emissions in general, so that
the continued operation of all production lines is ensured and as per industry best standards and practices are im-
plemented. Moreover, in 2020, the Company established a branch called “Green Solutions Environmental Services

Company” in order to realize its vision of a sustainable environment.
In addition, CCC supports social contributions relating to the Environment:
1. Sponsored the Vision of Solar Energy Conference - Qassim University.

2. Supported MEWA's Environment Week - Shagra Governorate,

VIIl. Human Resources

With the aim of achieving its goals in terms of developing and training its human resources, CCC has adopted specialized
programs for personnel selection, development and career planning to ensure that positions are filled by qualified
and distinguished national competencies. CCC also encourages staff to participate positively in the development of
the Company and creates a suitable working environment that promotes teamwork, while continuing to strengthen
their skills and qualifications to boost their level of performance. The Company has nationalized many leadership
positions and employed national personnel in several departments.

Furthermore, the Company continues to cooperate with local and global entities specialized in providing technical,
managerial and marketing training services, in addition to holding in-house workshops and considering the possibility
of sending national personnel on scholarships in the cement industry domain within the Kingdom and/or abroad in
the future, It is worth noting that the Company is classified within the Nitagat Green Range.

IX. Risks

As CCC pays high attention to potential risks resulting from the competition that the Company anticipates
at the domestic level, it regularly reviews these risks and establish appropriate measures to address them. It
should be noted that therisks described below do not include all the risks that the Company could face, foritis
possible that there other risks that are not known to the Company at the present time or which the Company
deems to be either rare risks or risks with little impact:

m Operational and marketing risks:The Company pays attention to the potential risks resulting from the
competition anticipated at the local level owing to domestic cement companies' high inventories. The
Company monitors and regularly reviews these and operational risks and establish appropriate measures
10 address and contain them and to ensure the continuity of fuel supplies from Saudi Aramco..

B Economic risk:The domestic and global economic situation may have a directimpact on the future business
of the Company, including changes in sales performance, the level of market liquidity and financing costs,
industrial recession, competition from foreign countries and manufacturers, technical development, prices
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of fuel, inputs and the Company's end products, inflation, political events that could impact on corporate
markets, exchange rate volatility, and product alternatives that could have an impact on the Company 's
business and revenue,

B Risks related to laws and regulations: The running of the Company's business is governed by multiple
laws and regulations. Any changes to or replacements of these laws and regulations by any government
entity, regulatory body or judicial authority, or the issuance of an order ceasing the Company's business,
or all or some of the Company's products, could impact on the Company's business and revenue.

B Risk from focusing on certain customers: Thankfully, the Company's products cover a wide range of
customers. The Company depends on distributors for the distribution of its products. If any customer
or a group of customers or distributers incurred losses, stopped dealing with the Company or otherwise
failed to abide by the established criteria for selling the Company’s products, this would impact on the
Company»s business and revenue,

B Risk from the Company's geographical location and natural disasters: All the Company's business
is concentrated in one location. Any directive suspending the Company's business in this location or any
natural disasters such as floods or earthquakes occurring therein would have an impact on the Company's
business and revenue,

B Risk related to mining rights: Mining is an essential part of the Company's activity and mining rights
are granted to the Company by the Saudi government's relevant authorities. It those mining rights are
canceled or any restrictions imposed thereon, the Company's ability to operate the plant may be affected
and as a consequence there would be serious adverse repercussions for the Company’s financial position
and results of operations.

B Risk related to energy supplies: Cement production consumes large quantities of energy, which account
for a large portion of production costs. Therefare, any rise in fuel prices will have a negative impact on
the Company’s business, financial position and results of operations. Also, failure to secure the required
amount of fuel for the second line would have an ongoing negative and substantial effect on the Company.

X. Corporate Governance

The Company applies all the provisions set out in CMA's Governance Regulations, except for those listed below:

Partiall
Article Text of the Article/Paragraph appliedy Not applied | Reason for non-application

Unapplied indicative articles

Indicative articles which will
Articles 38, 39,41, 70,71,72,76,77,78,

/ be applied when they become
83,85,88,89(3) & 95
mandatory.
The Ordinary General Assembly shall, upon a The article is indicative. Never-
proposal by the Board of Directors, establish theless, the Company’s social
. a policy that ensures a balance between its contributions are approved by
Article 87 o o / .
objectives and those of the community with the Board of Directors, and work
the aim to develop the socio-economic con- is underway to formulate the
ditions of the community. required policy.




Xl. Description of Any Deviations from the Accounting Standards Adopted by
the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA)

There are no deviations from the accounting standards issued by SOCPA,

XIl. (@): Names of the Members of the Current Board of Directors in
its Fifth Session, Committee Members, their Current and Former Po-
sitions, Qualifications, Experience, and Board Memberships in Other
Joint Stock Companies (JSCs)

Title Qualifications, Current & Former Positions, and SR e
Experience

Bachelor of Business Administration.
Board Chairman, City Cement Co.
Board Chairman, Aljouf Agricultural Co.

President, Tech Services Co. * City Cement Co. (Public

HRH Prince 15O

Abdulaziz bin Mishaal JERESIMSELEY
bin Abdulaziz Al Saud

President, Advanced IT Co.
e Allouf Agricultural Co.
GM, First Building Construction, a private establishment. | (public SC)

General supervision of several branches affiliated
with his private enterprises in various business areas,
services and contracting activities.

Commercial agent for several US, European and
Asian companies.

High School Diploma.

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, Managing
Director & Chairman of the Executive Committee,
City Cement Co.

Board Member and Member of the Audit Committee,
Alabdullatif Holding Group.

GM, Alabdullatif Furniture.

Board Member and Member of the Executive Com-

mittee, Future Ceramics. e (ity Cement (Public |SC)

Vice Chairman, | Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration | ¢ Alabdullatif Holding

Badr bin Omar Managing Direc- | committee, City Cement (formerly). Group (Closed |SC)
tor & Chairman

Alabdullatif of the Execu- | Board Member, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment | e Future Ceramics (Closed
tive Committee | (formerly). e

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Com-
mittee, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment (formerly).

Chairman of the Audit Committee, Alabdullatif In-
dustrial Investment (formerly).

Assistant GM, Alabdullatif Furniture (formerly).

Director of Administration & in charge of all branches
countrywide (formerly).

Director, Government Relations, Alabdullatif Furni-
ture (formerly).
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Majid bin Abdurrahman

Al-Osailan

Board Member
& CEQ

Preparing for an INSEAD-accredited global GM
certification.

Master of Administrative Sciences from the Amer-
ican International University (certified by the Min-
istry of Higher Education and SACM.

Future Managers Program, equivalent to a mas-
ter's degree in banking, from Altaweel Institute.

Various conferences, workshops and training
courses within and outside the Kingdom in spe-
Cialized administrative, financial and technical in-
dustrial disciplines / 3000+ hours (INSEAD School
of Business, University of San Diego School of
Business, Euromoney Institute, Oxford Business
Institute, London Institute of Business, Saudi
Banking Institute, Leoron International Training
Center).

Bachelor of Accounting, King Saud University.

Member of the Saudi International Chamber of
Commerce.

Board Member, Ajil Financial Services.
Board Member and CEO, City Cement.
Member of the Executive Committee, City Cement.

Board Member, Saudi Makamin Holding Co. (for-
merly).

Board Member, Alabdullatif Industrial Investment.

Chairman of the Audit Committee, Alabdullatif In-
dustrial Investment.

Board Member, Natural Gas Distribution Co.

Member of the Executive Committee, Natural Gas
Distribution Co.

Member of the Audit Committee, Murabaha In-
stallment Co. (formerly).

Head of Finance, Administration & IT, City Cement
(formerly).

Head of Finance, City Cement (formerly).

Corporate Banking Department, Riyad Bank (for-
merly).

Credit & Risk Department, Riyad Bank (formerly).

Accounting Dept, Fransi (formerly).

¢ Ajil Financial Services
(Closed JSQ)

e City Cement (Public
150

¢ Alabdullatif Industrial
Investment  (Public
156)

e Natural Gas Distribu-
tion Co. (Closed JSC)




Mohammed bin Saad
Al-Moajil

Omar bin Hamad
Al-Mishaal

Saleh bin Sulaiman
Al-Rajhi
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Board Member

Bachelor of Business Administration & Marketing
(Honors), American University in Dubai, UAE.

Master of Business Administration, Stanford Uni-
versity, USA.

Board Member, City Cement.

Board Member & Chairman of the Investment
Committee, Tech Investment Co.

Board Member and Chairman of the Executive &
Investment Committees, Dhahran International
Exhibitions Company (Dhahran Expo).

Member of the Saudi British Business Council.
Member of the Saudi Irish Business Council.

Board Member and Head of Investment, AlMoajil
Trading & Contracting.

Financial Advisor, Atlantic Pacific Capital, UK (for-
merly).

e (ity Cement (Public |SC)
¢ AlMoajil Trading & Con-
tracting (Closed JSC)
¢ Dhahran Expo (Closed

NG
e Tech Investment

(Closed  JSO)

e Dhahran Chemical In-
dustries and Marketing
(Closed JSQ)

Board Member

Higher Diploma in Law Studies.

Bachelor of Education.

Master of Sharia and a PhD researcher in law.
Board Member, City Cement.

Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, City Cement (formerly).

CEO, Basiga Holding.

Board Member, CEO & Managing Director, Rakhaa
Holding.

GM, ABYAT Saudi Arabia.
Legal Advisor, Cabinet Office (formerly).

e (City Cement (Public
NG

Board Member
& Chairman of
the Nomination
and Remunera-

tion Committee

Bachelor of Business Administration.

Experience in banking and the management of
commercial & investment companies.

e (ity Cement (Public
NG

Board Member

Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering.
Holder of several management program certificates.

Board Member & Chairman of the Audit Committee,
City Cement.

Board Member & CEOQ, International Trading and
Contracting Co. Ltd (ITCQC).

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mem-
ber of the Executive Committee & the Nomination,
Appointment and Remuneration Committee, Riyadh
Cables Group Company.

Board Chairman, Saudi Modern Company for Spe-
cialized Electrical Cables & Wires Industry.

Board Chairman, Riyadh Cables Company.

Board Member, Saudi Modern Company for Metals,
(Cables and Plastic Industry.

Board Member, Saudi Modern Company for Telephone
(ables Industry.

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Member
of the Executive Committee, Future Ceramics.

Board Member, Afaq Al Hikma.
Board Member, Al Afaq Development.
Board Member, Ajyal Al Hikma.
Board Member, Deira Akel Real Estate.

Executive Director, Riyadh Cables Group Company
(formerly).

¢ (ity Cement (Public
150

e Future Ceramics
(Closed JSC)

¢ Saudi Modern Com-
pany for Specialized
Electrical Cables
& Wires Industry
(Closed JSC)

¢ Saudi Modern Compa-
ny for Metals, Cables
and Plastic Industry
(Closed |SC)

* Saudi Modern Com-
pany for Telephone
Cables Industry
(Closed ]SC)

e Afag Al Hikma Devel-
opment (Closed |SC)

¢ Riyadh Cables Group
(Closed ]SC)

Mohammed bin & Chairman
Hikmat Al-Zaiem of the Audit
Committee

Member of the

Mohammed bin Audit Commit-

EECREARYCEICIIN tce (Non-Board
Member)

Bachelor of Business Administration, USA.
Master of Financial Management, USA.

Several advanced credit & risk management
courses.

Member of the Audit Committee, City Cement.

Corporate and Institutional Banking Department,
SABB.

Member of the Board of Directors & the Nomination
andRemuneration Committee, AlSorayaiTrading.

Board Member, United Insulations Co. (formerly).

Head of the Financial Analysis Department, Dar Al
Gharbia Financial Consultancy (formerly).

Member of the
Nomination &
Remuneration
Committee
(Non-Board
Member)

Abdurrahman bin
Saad Al-Qarni

Bachelor of Security Sciences.
Higher Diploma in Administrative Leadership.
Master of Administrative Science.

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, City Cement.

GM, Rawdat Al Emaar Contracting Est.
Qasr Al-Hokm Force Director (formerly).

Director of Criminal Investigation, Riyadh Police
(formerly).




XIlI. (b): Names of the Members of the Executive Management Team, their Cur-

rent and Former Positions, Qualifications and Experience

Deputy CEO- transformation

Turki bin Abdulaziz Coundil (SBDQ)

Alabdullatif

Bachelor of Public Administration, King Saud University.

Started his career in the sales services sector then moved
to the banking sector as a sales and marketing services
representative and then to the cement industry where he
served in various leadership positions including Head of
HR, Head of Administration and Chairman of the Develop-
ment and Organizational Projects Committee, with more
than fifteen years of work experience.

Received a number of training courses in administrative
areas.

Deputy CEQ - Strategic

Abdurrahman Mostafa Business Development

Ahmed Council (SBDC)

Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Man-
chester, UK,

Bachelor of Mechanical Power Engineering.

\Various specialized technical courses and conferences in
the cement industry, supply chain management and HR.

Head, Strategic Planning Department (formerly).

Head, Technical and Development Sector, InterCement
(formerly).

Director, Performance Improvement & Quality Depart-
ment, InterCement (formerly).

Director, Production Department, Italcementi (formerly).

A number of important posts at Italcementi (formerly).

¢ Board Committees:

1. The Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee oversees risk management and internal controls in the various aspects of the Company's

business. Its responsibilities include reviewing and discussing the Company's quarterly and annual financial state-

ments. The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board of Directors and the General Assembly on the

appointment of the Company's CPA.

e Members of the Audit Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Designation 13/1/2020 | 9/3/2020 | 11/3/2020 | 22/3/2020 | 6/5/2020 | 6/8/2020 & 2/11/2020
Mr. Mohammed bin Committee
v v v v v v v
Hikmat Al-Zaiem Chairman
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Committee
v v v v v v v
Al-Mishaal Member
Mr. Mohammed bin Committee Member
v v v v v v v
Hamdan Al-Sorayai (Non-Board Member)

Idris Abu Al-Qasim

Financial Manager
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Fellow of the American Institute of Certified Public Ac-
countants.

Bachelor of Accounting, University of Khartoum.
Director, Financial Department.

Director of Audit (formerly).

Supervises accountants and cashiers.

Prepares financial reports and reconciles annual & quar-
terly financial statements.

Financial analysis, performance indicators and feasibility
studies.

Formulates financial policies and procedures.

Participates in the implementation of accounting pro-
grams.

Designs audit plans and evaluates internal control sys-
tems.

Prepares estimated budgets and strategic plans.

Prepares and examines zakat and tax returns.

e |nits fifth session, the Committee held seven meetings in 2020.

2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews the structure of the Board of Directors and how effectively
its members are performing, makes recommendations on changes that could be made, identifies weaknesses and
strengths, ascertains the independence and absence of conflicts of interest on the part of the members, recom-
mends member nominations as needed, and reviews the remuneration and compensation of the Board committees,

Executive Management team’s salaries and Saudization percentages.

e Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Designation 16/2/2020 24/3/2020
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi Committee Member v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil Committee Member v v
) i Committee Member
Mr. Abdurrahman bin Saad Al-Qarni v v
(Non-Board Member)

e |nits fifth session, the Committee held two meetings in 2020.

3. The Executive Committee:

The Executive Committee develops studies and strategic plans, finds appropriate solutions and alternatives, and
makes recommendations to the Board.

e Members of the Executive Committee in the Fifth Session of the Board:

Name Designation 9/9/2020
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif Committee Chairman v
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan Committee Member v
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem Committee Member v

e Inits fifth session, the Committee held one meeting in 2020.



e Committee Members’ Remuneration for 2020:

Reimbursements and
Attendance .
Travel & Accommodation Total

Fixed Remuneration

Fee
Costs

Executive Committee Members

Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif 3,000
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan 3,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem 3,000
Audit Committee Members
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem 21,000 0
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal 21,000 0
Mr. Mohammed bin Hamdan Al-Sorayai 50,000 21,000 3131
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Members
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi 6,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil 6,000
Mr. Abdurrahman bin Saad Al-Qarni 50,000 6,000

e The Board of Directors:

1. Board Members:

e Members of the Board of Directars and their Remuneration during 2020 in the Board's Fifth Session:

2. Board Members’ Attendance of Board Meetings in 2020:

The table below shows the meetings of the members of the Board of Directors during 2020 in the Board's

fifth session:

Number of Meetings

Name 25/3/2020 | 7/4/2020 | 23/4/2020 | 24/6/2020 | 26/10/2020 | 5/11/2020
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin

v v v v 4 X
Mishaal Al Saud
Mr, Badr bin Omar Alabdul-

v v v v v v
latif
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman

v v v v v v
Al-Osailan
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman

v v v v v v
Al-Rajhi
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad

v v v v v v
Al-Moajil
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-

v v v v v v
Mishaal
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat

v v v v v v
Al-Zaiem

3. Dates of the Shareholders’ General Assemblies Held during the Past Financial Year and Board Members

who Attended the Same:

Meeting Salary, Com-
Annual .
Category . Attendance pensation &
Remuneration
Fee Allowances
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin Mishaal
Board Chairman | Independent 200,000 15,000
Al Saud
Vice Chairman
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif D Executive 200,000 18,000
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman
Board Member Executive 200,000 18,000
Al-Osailan
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi | BoardMember | Independent 200,000 18,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad
' BoardMember | Independent 200,000 18,000
Al-Moajil
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal | Board Member | Independent 200,000 18,000
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat
Board Member | Independent 200,000 18,000
Al-Zaiem

¢ Acting on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommended
that a recommendation be made to the next General Assembly to approve annual remuneration payments to

the Board members totaling SR 1.400.000 on a distribution basis of SR 200.000 for each member.

The above remuneration was determined in accordance with the Remuneration Policy approved by the General
Assembly on 3/5/2018 so as to avoid any material deviations.
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10th Ordinary General Assembly

11th Ordinary General Assembly

29/6/2020 25/8/2020
HRH Prince Abdulaziz bin Mishaal Al Saud X X
Mr. Badr bin Omar Alabdullatif v v
Mr. Majid bin Abdurrahman Al-Osailan v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Saad Al-Moajil X X
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi X v
Mr. Omar bin Hamad Al-Mishaal v v
Mr. Mohammed bin Hikmat Al-Zaiem v v

4. Steps Taken by the Board to Inform its Members, and in Particular Non-Executives, of Shareholders’ Pro-
posals and Comments about the Company and its Performance:

The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board informs the Board members, and in particular non-executives, of
shareholders' proposals and comments about the Company and its performance.



5. Disclosure of the Remuneration of the Board Members and Executive Management as Provided for in

Article 93 of the Corporate Governance Regulations:

The following is the text of the Remuneration Policy for Board Members, Board Committees and the
Executive Management which was approved by the General Assembly on 3/5/2018:

Introduction:

This Remuneration Policy for Board Members, Board
Committees and the Executive Management has been
prepared with the aim of complying with the Corporate
Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market
Authority (CMA) Board pursuant to Resolution 8-16-2017
dated 16/5/1438H, corresponding to 13/2/2017, which

Purpose:

The purpose of this policy is to define clear criteria for
the remuneration of Board members, Board Committees
and senior executives in light of the Companies Law
requirements and CMA regulations. In addition, this policy
aims to attract professionals with adequate competence,
capabilities and talent to serve on the Company's Board,

General Criteria for Remuneration:

stipulate that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) shall "prepare a clear policy for the remuneration
of the Board members, Board committees and Executive
Management, and present such policy to the Board for
consideration, in preparation for approval by the General
Assembly.”

committees and Executive Management by adopting
incentive remuneration schemes and programs linked to
performance, thus contributing to the improvement of
the Company's performance and achievement of the best
interests of its shareholders.

It is the responsibility of the NRC to make recommendations to the Board of Directors on the remuneration
of the Board members, committee members and senior executives of the Company in accordance with the

approved criteria, as outlined in the following:;

e The remuneration shall be commensurate with the
Company's activities, strategy, objectives and the
skills needed to manage it, and consistent with the
magnitude, nature and degree of risks faced by the
Company.

e The Company shall take into consideration the
practices of other companies and those prevailing
in the labor market in respect of the determination
of remuneration, avoiding unjustifiable increases in
remuneration and compensation that may result from
such benchmark comparisons,

e Theremuneration shall be determined based on job
level, duties and responsibilities, educational qualifica-
tions, work experience, skills and performance level.

e Remuneration of the Board Members :

¢ The remuneration shall be reasonably sufficient to
attract, motivate and retain adequately competent
and experienced professionals.

* Theremuneration of a Board member shall be deter-
mined such that it reflects the member’s experience,
responsibilities, duties, the number of Board meetings
attended by the member, etc.

¢ The remuneration shall be suspended and taken
back where it turns out that it was given based
on inaccurate information provided by the mem-
ber of the Board or Executive Management, in
order to prevent abuse of office to obtain undue
remuneration.

1. The remuneration of City Cement Company (CCC) Board members shall consist of an annual lump sum,
meeting attendance fee, reimbursement allowance, in-kind benefits, or a combination of two or more of
these benefits, provided that the ceiling prescribed by the Companies Law and its implementing regula-
tions shall nat be exceeded, as shown in the table below:

Attendance fee per meeting SR 3.000

Transportation and travel allowance for mem-
. . . . Equal to actual expenses
bers residing outside the city of venue (Riyadh)

Determined annually without exceeding SR 200,000
Annual lump sum per member , , , , o
as stipulated in the Company's Articles of Association
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Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of a Board member indicated above may be subject to review from
time to time on the NRC's recommendation in light of the Company’s performance, in which case the ap-
proval of the shareholders' General Assembly (GA) shall be obtained.

2. The amount of such remuneration may vary in light of a policy issued by the NRC and approved by the
Company's GA.

3. Theannual Boardreport shall include a comprehensive statement of all the amounts received by the Board
members during the fiscal year including remuneration, reimbursement allowances and other benefits, as
well as all the amounts received by the Board members in their capacities as employees or managers, orin
consideration of any technical, administrative or advisory work performed. The report shall also include a
statement of the number of Board meetings and the number of meetings attended by each member from
the date of the last meeting of the GA.

4. The Board may set special remuneration payments for the Board Chairman, Vice Chairman and Managing
Director in accordance with Article 21(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Remuneration of the Committee Members:

1. The Board shall determine and approve the remuneration, attendance fees and other benefits of the
members of its committees, with the exception of the Audit Committee, upon the recommendation of
the NRC.

2. The meeting attendance fee and other benefits shall be paid as described herein in accordance with the
table below:

Attendance fee per meeting (to be paid following each
(meeting

SR 3.000

Transportation and travel allowance for members

. . . ) Equal to actual expenses
(residing outside the city of venue (Riyadh

Remuneration of a committee member who is a non-
Board member (as approved by the NRC based on the
(functions assigned thereto

Up to and not exceeding SR 50.000 per
annum

Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of a committee member (who is a non-Board member) indicatedabove
may be subject to review from time to time based on a recommendation by the NRC to the Board (which,
in turn, shall make a recommendation in case of approval) in light of the Company's performance, in which
case the GA's approval shall be obtained.

3. The remuneration and meeting attendance fee of the members of the Audit Committee shall be ap-
proved by the shareholders’ GA upon the Board's recommendation as per the regulations.



Remuneration of the Executive Management:

® The NRC shall review and approve the salary scale and incentive schemes for all employees and senior
executives onaregular basis upon the recommendation of the Executive Management. The remuneration
of the Executive Management team shall include:

B A base salary (to be paid on a monthly basis at the end of each Gregorian month), plus allowances
including but not limited to: a housing allowance, a transportation allowance, a telephone allowance,
a children tuition fee allowance, medical insurance benefits for the team member and his/her family,

6. (a) The Interests and Rights of the Members of the Current Board of Directors in its Fifth Session
in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or Any of its Subsidiaries, as well as Those of
Their Spouses and Minor Children:

annual leave, annual air tickets and end-of-service benefits in accordance with the Labor Law and the

Company's HR Policy.

® A KPI-linked annual bonus based on the relevant annual appraisal.

B The annual bonus of all employees and senior executives shall be approved by a resolution of the Board

on the recommendation of the NRC.

Further Guidelines on Remuneration & Payment Mechanism:

1

Board members shall not vote on the agenda item
relating to the remuneration of the Board members
at ameeting of the shareholders' GA.

. The Company shall disclose the remuneration of the
Board members, committee members and senior
executives in the annual Board report as prescribed
by the directives and guidelines issued under the
Companies Law and CMA laws and their implement-
ing regulations.

. Amember shall be entitled to remuneration starting
from the date of joining the Board or committee pro
rata to the duration of serving thereon.

. The remuneration payments of the members of
the Board and committees shall be processed by

the Board Secretary or committee secretary, as
applicable, and approved by the CFO.

. The attendance fee for a Board meeting or a com-

mittee meeting shall be paid within one week after
the meeting.

. With the start date of serving on the Board during

the expired fiscal year being taken into consider-
ation, the annual remuneration of the Board shall
be paid on an annual basis after being approved by
the GA. The annual remuneration of a committee
member (wha is a non-Board member) shall be paid
annually within 30 days following the end of the
fiscal year, with the start date of serving on the
committee during the expired fiscal year being taken
inta consideration.,

Board Secretary’s & Committee Secretaries’ Remuneration and Attendance Fees:

Board Secretary’s attendance fee SR 2.000
A committee secretary’s attendance fee SR 1.000
Board Secretary's annual remuneration SR 20.000
A committee secretary’s annual remuneration SR 20.000

Adjustment & Payment:

The annual lump-sum remuneration of the Board Secretary and committee secretaries indicated above
may be subject to review from time to time based on a recommendation by the NRC to the Board (which,
in turn, shall make a recommendation in case of approval) in light of the Company's performance, in which
case the GA's approval shall be obtained.

F

inal Provisions (Review, Amendment & Publication):

This Policy shall enter into force and be complied with by the Company as of 1/1/2017. It shall be reviewed on a
regular basis (as needed) by the NRC, Any amendments proposed by the NRC shall be submitted to the Board which,
in turn, shall examine and review the proposed amendments and present them to the shareholders’ GA for approval.
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Shares at the end Shares at theend = Change during the
of 2019 of 2020 year
No. of No. of No. of
Name Remarks Percentage Percentage Percentage
Shares Shares Shares
HRH Prince Abdulaziz
bin Mishaal Al Saud - 957,727 = 0506 = 708677 0506 = 249050  (26%)
Board Chairman
Mr. Badr bin Omar
Alabdullatif - 2,000 0.001% 1,479 0.001% 521 (26%)
Vice Chairman
Mr. Majid bin Abdu-
rrahman Al-Osailan - 40000 = 0021% = 29598 @ 0021% @ 10402 (26%)
Board Member & CEO
Mr. Mohammed bin
Hikmat Al-Zaiem - 280,000 = 0147% @ 207,188 0147% @ 72812 (26%)
Board Member
Mr. Omar bin Hamad
Al-Mishaal - 969,000 = 0512 = 710359 0507 @ 258641 @ (26%)
Board Member
Mr.Mohammed bin | Represents Al-
Saad Al-Maaijil Moajil Trading  4,300000 2272 3181818 2272 1118182  (26%)
Board Member & Contracting
Mr. Saleh bin Sulaim-
an Al-Rajhi - 117 0,0001 86 0,0001 31 (26%)
Board Member

It should be noted that the Company effected a capital reduction which resulted in a change in the share-
holding percentages.



e (b) Senior Executives' Interests and Rights in the Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or
Any of its Subsidiaries, as well as Those of Their Spouses and Minor Children;

Shares at the Shares at the No. of
Position RENENS Percentage
end of 2019 end of 2020 Shares

Mr. Turki bin Ab- Deputy CEO -
His shares - -
dulaziz Alabdullatif SBDC

7. Senior Executives’' Remuneration & Compensation:

The remuneration and compensation of the Company's senior executives (namely: the Managing Director, CEQ,
Deputy CEO - SBDC, Deputy CEQ - SBDC, and CFO) were as follows:

Salaries Allowances Bonuses
3199104 1.760.929 1.728.05¢2

XIll.  Company’s Declarations

Out of departure of its role and responsibilities in protecting the Company's assets, the Board of Directors,
based on the information available to it, the auditor's report, the current market requirement outcomes and
the future indicators confirms the following;

1. The account books have been prepared properly.

The internal control system has been prepared on proper bases and implemented effectively.

2
3. Thereis not doubt at all about the Company's ability to continue the activity.
4

There are no investments or reserves created for the benefit of employees (for example, provident, loans,
employees’ shares..etc.).

There is no contract with substantial interest for a member of the founding Board of Directors or the
Executive Management Team.

There is no arrangement or agreement under which a member of the founding Board of Directors or the
Executive Management Team assigns any salary or remuneration.

There is no arrangement or agreement under which a founding shareholder assigns any rights to profits.

Shareholders' register has been requested five times for the following reasons:

Request Date of File Purpose of Request

23/02/2020 Preparing the Board's report
28/06/2020 Holding the General Assembly
23/08/2020 Holding the General Assembly
27/10/2020 Reducing the share capital

15/11/2020 Distributing the profits
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XIV: Audit Committee’s Recommendations in Conflict with the Board's Resolutions
or the Board Refused to Adopt as to the Appointment, Dismissal, Determination of
Fees and Performance Evaluation of the Company’s Auditor or the Appointment
of an Internal Auditor, and Grounds of these Recommendations and Reasons for
not Adopting them.

There are no recommendations from Audit Committee that are in conflict with the Board's resolutions or that the
Board refused to adopt with regard to the appointment, dismissal, determination of remuneration and performance
evaluation of the Company's Auditor or the appointment of Internal Auditor.

XV: Annual Audit of the Company'’s Effective Internal Control Procedures:

The conclusions of the annual review of the effective internal control procedures of 2020 showed that there are
no substantial remarks affecting the Company's activity. KPMG conducts the Company's internal audits, carries out
continuous audits to check the effectiveness of the internal control system in protecting the Company's assets, as-
sess the business risks, and submits its reports periodically to the Audit Committee which in turn reviews and audits
these reports and directs accordingly. It did not turn out to the Audit Committee that there is substantial weakness
in internal control procedures set by the Company. The Executive Committee of City Cement Company recommends
10 continue improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the applicable control policies and procedures and updat-
ing them in conformity with the Company's volume of activity and nature of businesses.

(@YEE!



XVI: Financial Results

Below is a summary of financial results of the period from 2016 to 2020:

1- Statement of Financial Position:

Particulars 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Current Assets 488,678 821,508 577317 676,488 533,348
Non-current Assets 1,459,780 | 1526824 | 1647331 @ 1593535 1,706,162
Total Assets 1848459 | 2348333 | 2224648 | 2270023 | 2239510
Liabilities and Equity - - - - -
Current Liabilities 79,620 67,932 71197 154,496 171,879
Non-current Liabilities 23,797 23153 11,542 10,062 8,188
Total Liabilities 103,418 91,086 82,738 164,558 180,067
Equity - - - - -
Capital 1,400,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,892,000 | 1,832,000
Statutory Reserve 175470 153421 134411 123314 113983
Other Reserves (2115) (L,417) - - -
Retained Profits 271,685 213,042 115,498 90,151 53,460
Total Equity 1845041 | 2,257,246 | 2141909 & 2105465 2,059443
Equity and Liabilities 1848459 | 2348333 | 2224648 | 2270023 | 2,239510

e 0On 07/03/1441H, corresponding to 4/11/20189, the Board's recommendation was declared decreasing
the capital by 26% and compensating the shareholders. On 06/01/1442H, corresponding to 25/08/2020,
the Extraordinary General Assembly was held regarding the decrease of capital and the Company's cap-
ital decrease was approved; thus, the Company's new capital became SR 1,400,000,000 instead of SR
1,892,000,000.

The chart below shows the development of assets and equity during the five years from 2016 to 2020:

2016-2020 Assets & Equity (SR million)

2500 —
B Assets ®
2000 |- Equity ™
1500 [
1000 |
500

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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2- Statement of Income: Value in Thousands of Riyals
2020 2019 PAONRS 2017 2016
Net Sales 572,729 531,377 344,896 535,393 601,888
Cost of Sales (315,769) | 300,264 244,183 406918 345,813
Gross Profit 256,960 231112 100,713 108475 256,075

Total General, Administrative, Sale and
, (36,913) (36,080) (31,115) (27,082) (25,319)
Marketing Expenses

Other Revenues/ Expenses 10157 10,468 52,188 4,082 251

Zakat 9711 15,402 13,000 (12,169) (14,700)

Net Income of the Year 220,493 190,097 112312 93,306 216,307

Dividend 122 1.00 0.59 049 114
3- Summary of Statement of Cash Flow: Value in Thousands of Riyals

Particulars | 2020 | 2019

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 381,827 330,929

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities 234,554 (492,283)

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities (634,876) (78,559)

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,394) (239913)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Start of the Year 68,455 308,369

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 50,061 68,455

e The Company's financial statements of the fiscal year ended 31/12/2020 form an integral part of this
report.

XVII: Profits

1- Company's Profit Distribution Policy

The Company's policy in distributing its net annual profits relies on what is indicated in the Company's Articles
of Association and the availability of the liquidity required to fulfill the payment of the strategic investments
and projects of the Company. Profits are distributed as follows:

1. The Company shall set aside aminimum of 10% of its 3. Of the balance of profits, a first payment will be distrib-
net profits to create a statutory reserve, The Ordinary uted to the shareholders in at least (1%) one percent
General Assembly may decide to discontinue setting of the paid-up capital.
aside such percentage when said reserve reaches half

4. Apercentage of no more than 10% ten present, after

of the Company’s capital. the foregoing, will be designated as Board's remuneration

2. The Ordinary General Assembly may, based on the in compliance with the regulations and instructions
Board's suggestion, set aside a certain percentage issued by the Ministry of Commerce and Investment
of the net profits to create a consensual reserve and in this respect. Then, the balance will be distributed to
designate it for a specific purpose or specific purposes. the shareholders as additional share of profits.
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2- Distribution of Profits during 2020

e The Board of Directors in its meeting No. (6-2020/5) held on Thursday 19/03/1442H, corresponding to
05/11/2020 made a recommendation on the distribution of cash profits of the first half of 2020 from the
balance of the retained profits totaling (SR 140,000,000) in (SR 1) per share.

XVII: Audit of 2020

1- Appointment of the Company's Auditor for 2019 and Q1 of 2020

The Company's Ordinary General Assembly agreed in its meeting held on Monday 08/11/1441H, corresponding to
29/06/2020 to appoint Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri and Co. to audit, examine and review the financial reports for the Q2,
Q3 and Q4 of the fiscal year 2020 and Q1 of 2021 and determine its fees.

2- Appointment of the Company’s Account Controller for 2019

The Auditor's report shows that the Company's financial statements for year ended 31/12/2020 is free from ma-
terial misstatement, and there are no reservations on them.

3- Accounting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared according to the international accounting standards that have been
adopted and approved by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). There are no differences
from these accounting standards on the auditing of the Company's financial statements.

Thanks and Recognition

In conclusion, the Board of Directors in this occasion is pleased to extend its great thanks and gratitude to
the Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques King Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, may Allah preserve him, and to his
Crown Prince HRH Prince Mohamed bin Salman bin Abdulaziz Al Saud, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of
Defense and to our wise government. The Board of Directors beseeches God Almighty to protect the leaders
of this country, grant success to our wise government for the good of this homeland and citizens, protect this
country from every evil and maintain the blessing of security, safety and peace.

Besides, the Board of Directors also extends thanks and recognition to the Ministry of Energy, Industry and
Mineral Resources, the Ministry of Commerce, the Ministry of Investment, Capital Market Authority, the Na-
tional Center for Monitoring Environmental Compliance and all relevant government authorities for their
continuous collaboration and support as well as the shareholders and clients for their precious support and
confidence and the Company's personnel for their fruitful efforts.

And Allah is the Grantor of success

Board of Directors
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We communixate with those charged with governance, among other matiers, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and signi ficant awdit findings, including any sigrificans deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our sudie

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rolevant
ethical requirements regarding indepondence, and 1o communicate with them o1l relstionships and other
mestters dhal may reasonably be thought 1o hear on our independence, and whene applicable, relevant
praventive meamune.

From the matters communicascd with those charged with governance, we deserming those matters that were
of moat tignificance in the audit of the financial asternents of the current period and are therefore the key
sudit maters. We describe these matters im our suditor’s repont unless law or regulation precludes public
dislimare about the mancr, or when, in extremcly rare circumstances, we detanmine that a matier should
not be communicaled in our report becauss the adverse consequences of doing so would ressomably be
expeced o outweigh the public interest benefits of such commanication,

Dhae: 16 RAJAR 1442 (H)
Comesponding 1 12 FERBRUARY 2021 (G)

We communicate with those charged with govermance, among other matiers, the planned scope and liming
of the ausdit and significant madit findings, including any sigeifican deficiencies in imemnal control that we
iddentify during cur audit.

We alio provide those charged with povernance with & slalcnocedt that we have compdied with relevant
ﬂﬂm%mﬂHMﬂthIMHﬂm
maatlers (hal may ressonably be thought 10 besr on our Independence, and whene applicable, relevant
preventiv measunes,

From the maners comenusicased with those charped with governance, we determine those matters that were
of mast significance in the sudit of the financial sticments of the cunrent period and are therefore te key
aadit matters. Wee describe these matters in owr sudibor's repont unless law or regulation prociudes public
disslomure about the maner, oF when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detanmine that o maticr shoubd
R0t be communicaled i our report beeause the advarse consequences of doing so would reasomably be
expected 1o sutweigh the public intered benefits of such comminication.

For Dv. Mobamed Al-Amn & Ca,,

——
e
_.-'". L Ea—v.:_ b
Tamal WL AbAme |
Certified Public Accountant

Registration Ne. 331

Date: 16 RAJAB 1442 (H)
Cosresponding io: 28 FEBRUARY 2021 (G)
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY CITY CEMENT COMPANY

A Saidi Joint Stock Comgany A Saudi Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A5 AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 FOR THE YEAR EXDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(In Saudi Riyals) (In Sawdi Riyals)

Balance As at 31 December
A3 at For the year ended
2009 I Janaary 2019 3 December
Noles 2020 __ (Restated)  __ (Restated) e e

Assrls botes ______ _(Restated)
Nom-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 1 ASA6490T 1518223857 1,580,031 396 Sarles 19 STLTIO6ET 531377506
Right of use assets §  L779.941 5441359 - ;

Investments in aquity instruments a1 fair 7 Cost of malen (FIS769.453)  (300.264.814)
walue through other comprehensive inconse A 118578 2051 240 - i3 ross i I5aB60234 1310012702
Intangible assets 126,692 200, 708 136,290 4 ; :
Total nos-carrest atsels 1,4%9,780.115 1.226.824.264 TSR0367 680 Selling and marketing expenses 0 (BT40,18%) (B.638.575)
ﬁ[l.l'llrrnl masels Geeneral and administrative expenses 21 (IBITRATY)  (29.442.39G)

NETILORY B 145146260 22.916,156 273,606, 3461

Trade reveivables 9 WG9 39,774,943 11450221 o |t At - TR0
Imvestments in equity instrunsnts al fair {1} Ciains on changes in fair value imvestments in equity instruments 10 5057987 1419452
valu through profit or loss 24298,817 485,840,830 10,193,193 Other income n

Prepayments and other receivables I 10,603,307 14,521,083 18420438 62174015 B.346,561
m and cash equivalents 12 50,061,188 455,784 308,369,107 Finanoe cort 3 (e (1,057,905)
L curTent assets m :llﬂmﬁ B3 22 Provesson of expected crodit loss expense ¥ (240,000) (239,957}
Equity and Liabilities SO M ., Met profit for the year befors zaku 230204538 205,499,882
Equity

*  Share capil 13 1400000000  1,592,000,000 1.8912,000,000
Staumory reserve 13 175.470,602 153,421,380 134,411,672 Zakat cxpensc 18 T11421)  (15402,799)
ﬁ",,: ur;mnf (1,1 15,616) (1. 417.014) (TL14T) Net profit for the year IT0493,117 19007 083
eamnings 271685968 21342183 117,834,788

Total equity 1845041044 1157.246,529 2144174313

Limbillilics Ibems of oiher comprefensive income

Mon-carrent Habilities :

Employees” end-of-service benefit IO 14060654 11,541,606 SRl R vl kol Aty s e o M

Hm—cmruﬁpmﬁmufmumw 15 . 2,882,552 = Gains on changes in fair value of investment in equity instruments 7 276,735 .

Provisi rehabilitation of :

on ian of arcas subjectio 16 e Rk Actuarial bosses on re-messurement of end of service benefits 14 (975337) (1,344,867

Total nan-current Hahilithes 13,797,399 23,153,574 17,504 400 Totul camprehensive income for the year 2I9,794.515  188,752.210
Current labilities Earnings per share

Trade payables 16,744,015 15,124,667 14,526,779

Current portion of lease liability 15 2413041 2 198,704 Basic and dilwted earnings per share of net profit for the vear . S e 1,00
Accrual and other payables 17 50,752,168 38,053 343 43,508,613

;mwm hﬁum‘ & !,Tllﬂl 11,656,243 13,161,843 !

otal current 79,620,642 67.932,857 71,197,235 Finance Manager CEL and Board M
Total liabilities I3AI800 91086531 BRI0L695 o 2 J‘i-ﬂmi‘
Total equily snd liabilitles 1948459085 2348333060 1132 276,008 i - Mo ] Al-Orailan

st "ﬁﬁl" o
Edrees Abo Algasem in Al-Crilan Bader Bwwelmiat A1-Abdullatif

The accompanying netes froam (1) o {35) form an imcgral pan of these financial m

The sccampanying notes from (1) 10 (35) form an integral mﬂmmﬂm
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= i EE;E ﬁ CITY CEMENT COMPANY
€ §H§ = § & g‘l:ﬂ} ] A Saudi Joint Stock Company
E :g = 3 & E g%_g pﬁ STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
< o= o FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
4| {In Saudi Riyuls)
E|E & 8. B For the year ended 31 December
- " hi‘ ; = 2 )
= & —HiC® BEER Oiperating aetivities
et profit for the year befors zakat 130,204,538 205,499,542
E — . . = P [ — Depreciation Bl 566,858 51,271,238
ﬁ . i. EE 22 rE- Ay = Gains on changes in fair value of investment in equity instruments (5,057,987) (3,419,452)
! 2 g-]g R 2 r_g]:ilsuil IEI i g Provislon of expected cradit boss expense 240,000 239,657
= & (o | | = Prowvision of ohsolescence inventory expense 2 0H), A} 1 TR0 00
i fmm end-of-service benefits 2267493 2,131,078
i 934,530 1,057,905
~ i (= 2 =
= s g | 5 o
EAEIEL-BR } ket ol
= - = : Prepuysments and othar receivables 1.917,776 4,308,355
= g Tndcm :.ﬁ]!..ﬂ-! 597.888
Accrual payabies 1 55
5 -E Cash from operation % %1’%?_
O S 5 = e E a Zakal differences and withholding . (3.917415)
z = Lakar paid (11,656243)  (12,990,983)
= = i e = o Employees” end-of-serviee bemefits paid (442882) (1479.553)
":‘-L jgi Yy Net cash Nows generaled from operuting activithes 381,927 330,979,155 a
E g Purchase of investment i equily instramenis st FYTPL
5 H i1 et gy mmaen oo
g ui & Purchase of investneent in equity mstremenis ai FVOCI - (2,951 8400
g ] . } Puschase of property, plant snd equipment and Capital work in progress (14245974  (17.081,226)
= Purchase of intangible asssts 2 {21,830)
Eg . i Net cash flows generated fram / {used in) investing activites 134,554,026 (452,283,079}
P I! Financing activitics ,
z g E i §.8_ = REpRICRS £ Cagital raduution (492,000,000)
- M s - e g SENoped. (140,000,000)  (75,680,000)
=§ £2 g rid EQEBE ESPUFRUN O W My RA6315) (28579399
™ < B E FE E Net eash flows used in financing activities (634.876,315) (TRS50309)
§ E= g = Feecq Hict chunge: In cash and cash squivalonts (183945%) (239913323
u_: ig' :g_ i _l _lg_ o Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 68455784 308369107
153 5z <l g - B2 = Cash and cash equivalents at the cnd of the year 0061188 68455784
E_u E:.-g "-',;g ! ® FLTE %I Nom-rash transactions from investing activities
z2 EEE 4?.5 !ig ; o “i § 5 E 5 Transfers from work in progress to property, plant and equipment 1516429 137,917,932
LRI H R e
B gt FREREEIE L B =veal, =
Edrees Abo Miafed Bin AlOsailan

The acconparying notes from (1) 1o (35) form an integral part of these financial statements,

S
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Snudi Joint Siock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Al amsoumnts in Ssudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

I COMPANY AND ACTIVITY

1.1 Establishment of the Company

City Cement Company (*the Company™), is a Saudi joint stock company, established under Ministerial Resolution
No. 804 and dated 12/5/1426 (comesponding to: 18/6/2005) and registered in Riyadh under Commsercial Register
No. 1010210441 dated 14/5/1426 (comesponding so: 206/2003) and Industrial License No. 1163/ dated 1671426
{(comesponding 1oc7/2005) and rencwed with No. 390 dated 10/2/1438 (correspording to:10/11/2016), The
Company operates under o matcrial quarry license according to the mining regulstions issued by Royal Decree
WNo. 216 dated 2877/1425 {comesponding to: 12/%/2004) and its duration is thirty Hijra years starting from the date
of the license, and the Company has the right to request a simflar period of renewal of this license subject o the
approval of the Ministry of Industry and Minaral Rezoueces.

The Company cbeained the following branches commercial registers:

Ui
Branch of city cement company for contracting 1010356028 16-1-1434 2.11-2012
Green Solutions Company for Environmental Services 1010664201 10-3-1442 26-10-2020

The Company's fiscal year is | 2 months from the beginning of Jansary until the end of December of each
calendar year,

L2 The nuture of the company’s activity

The Company's activity is the production of ondinary poritand cement and sulphate resistant cement, the import
mmﬁmnfrdimﬁmhﬁmnhhmm&phhmmiqmiMMH
municipal waste, and producing alemative fuels afier obtaining the necessary Fcenses and specialized sub-
contracts.

L3 Company capital

City Cement Company is a pubdic joint stock company listed on the Saudi capital market. lts share capital was
SAR l.m;-.m.:mmiuhmlmmmmm:mwmuufmwumurmm
mmwmntmhm@ﬁmmk%ﬂ;muammhuﬁulmmﬂm
by Saudi Riyals 492,000,060 by distributing the amount in cash o the sharcholders.

The Company”s Article of Association has been amended oa 2 Jumada |1 1442 comresponding to 18 January 2021,
and the Company's share capital has hecome Saudi Rivals L4001000,000 divided into 140 milion shares of equal
valus with a mominal vilue Saudi Rival 10 of each, all of the Company's shares are cash and ordinary shares, and
the procedures for accreditation in the commercial register were completed on Jumads 11 18, 1442, comesponding
o 31 January 2021, and therefons the shane capital has been amended in the financial statements.
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FIOXR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
{All amouts in Saudi Rivals unless olberwise stased)

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

These financinl staements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
Mhmmmﬁmuimwahmm-mmmmumimmum
Organizatlon for Centified Public Accountants (“S0CPA™),

The finnncinl staiements ase prepaned on a historical cost busis, except for the following significant items included
in the statement of financial position in relation 1o the investmenss In equity instruments that are measured at fair
value,

These financial smicments are presented in Sawndi Rivals (“SAR™), which ks the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

A1 New standards, amendments to standards, and interpretation

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their anmual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2020

Amendmens to [FRS 3 “Business Combinations™ - definition of o busiue

This amendment revises the definition of a business. According 1o feedback received by 1ASE, application of the
m.ﬁhmhmmlyﬂugmmb:mmiﬂilmmmruwuquuiﬁrrmu
buginess combinations.

Amendments fo [AS | and LAY § on the definiion of marerial

These amendments to IAS |, “Presenation of financial statements™, and 1AS 8 “Accouming policies, changes in
acoounting estimates and errors”, and consequential amendments 1o other IFRSs:

= Use a consistent definition of maseriality throughout IFRSs and the Comncepieal Framework for Financial
Raporting:

- Clasify the explanation of the definition of material: and
Incomparate some of the guidance in LAS | aboul immaierial infammton,

Amendments to [FRS 9, IAX 3% and [FRS 7 - Imterest Rate Benchmark Reform (phase 1)

These amendments provide certain reliels in connection with interast rate henehmark reform. The reliefs relate 1o
rmﬂpmﬁiﬂhnﬂmfﬁﬂﬁu]ﬂlﬂmﬁumiwﬂﬂgﬂtﬂﬂy.mhﬂumﬁmmmm.
However, any hedge ineffectivensss should continue 1o be recorded in the statement of peofit or loss.,

The adoption of the sbove amendments do not have any maserial impact on the financial stasements during the
yeur.



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
{All amounts in Sasdi Rivals unless otherwise staied)

41 Siandards ssued but nat yet effective

Following are the new standards and amendments o standards which are effective for annual periods beginning
o6 or after | January 2021 and earlier application is permirted, however, the Company has not early adopted them
in preparing thess firancial smiements,

Amendments to [AS | “Presentation of financial siatements™ - on dlaccificaion of Nabilities

These pemow-scope amendments 1o [AS 1 “presemation of financial statements”, clarify that linbilitics are
r.-lmi_lﬁml s cither cument or non-current, depending on the rights that exist al the end of the reponting perlod.
Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or even after the reporting dase (for example: the
receipl of a waiver or a breach of covenant), The amendment also clarifies what 1AS | means when it refiers to the
“selilement™ of 2 lEability.
Ameirdmienis fo IFRS 3, IAS 16 amd [AS 37
IFR% 3 "Busincss Combinations™ update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptunl Framework for Financial
Riporting without changing the accounting requinements for business combinations.,
- I.A.SIﬁ“ﬁmy,MMEqulm"MﬁﬁtmmﬁtyHmﬂnu’ngfmmﬂtmﬂufm.phm

and cquipmen? amoums received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its
imended use. Inssead. an entity will recognize such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets™ spexify which costs an entity includes
when assessing whether & contract will be loss-making,

43  Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 cycle
These improvements are effective on or alter 1 January 2021,

= IFRE 9 “Fimncinl Instrumems™ - Clarify the fees an entity includes in performing the =10% test™ in onder
10 assess whether to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 "Leases” - Remove the potential for confusion reganding lewse incemtives by amending
dhuesdrative example 13 accompanying IFRS 16, L 3
34 Financial insiruments

The Company initially recognises financial instraments on the trade date 2t which the Company becor
to the comtrictual provisions of the instrument. - a4

The Company classifies its firancial assets in the fllowing measurement categories:
these 10 be measured subsequently at fair vatlue (either through OCH or through profi or loss), and
= those o be mensured at amortized cost

The clussification depends on the Company s business model for inig thi financs
it i managing the financial assets and the contractual
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CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joine Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRBER 2020
(Al amounts in Sawdi Rivals unbess ofherwise staled)

The Company derecognises o financial assel when the contractunl rights to the cash flows from the asset explie,
or il iramsfers the rights 1o receive the contmctunl cash flows on the financial asser in & mansaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in the
transferred financial asset that is created or netained by the Company is recognised o @ sepamite wsset or Robility.

Financial assets and linbilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial position
when, and oaly when, the Compiany hat & legal right t offSet (he amounts and nfends either to seitle on o mel
hasis or 10 realice the asset and seetle the lability simulancously.

The Company has the following financial assets:

Finamchnl Assets ai Amioviised Cost

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows whwre those cash Tows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) are measured at amortised cost. A gain or hoss on a debt investment subsequently
measuned af amortised cost and not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the staement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assels is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fimanciol axsers o firle valne hrowgh stlier comprefensie imoome

The debt instrument is measured at fair value by other comprehensive income only I It meets the following
conditions and is not recognizad at fair value through changes in net assets:

#  The aasct is beld in a besiness moded that is designed ko hold assets o collect comtraciual cash flows and sdl
the fenascial assets.

*  The comracnaal terms of the financial siset kied on specific dates o cash lows that are only the paymoents frem
the princinal amaunt and inkerest on the principal amoant due,

Db instraments mexsured at fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair
value while recognizing the pofits and losses resulting from changes in fair value in other comprelensive incame.
Financing income, foreign exchange gains and losses are carried af the statensent of profit or loss.,

Equity instruments: On initial recognition, 1o invest in non-iraded shares, the Company may apply an irmevocahle
option ko make subsequent changes in falr value in sther comprehensive income. The presented amounts bn cther
compretensive income are not subssquently transferred 10 the statement of profit or less.

Flitawial avsets af fair value Brrough chamges I mef gsseds

All other financial assets are classified as messured ot fair value through the statement of profil or loss (for
example: shares held for trading and deb securities that are not classificd based on amontized cost or at fair value
through ciher comprehensive income).

Impairmeni of financial assets

For accounts receivables, the Company applics the simplified approach, which requines expecied lfetime losses
lo be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. Expected loss mnes were derived from historical
information of the Compary and are adjusted to reflect the expected flture outconye,



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
(All amounts in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise cated)

Financial liahilities

Financial liabilities ane recognised inilially on the trade date, which is the date that ibe Company becomes a party
in the contraciul provisions of 1he instnament.

Financial [sabilites are recognised initially af fir value plues any dinectly sttributable transaction costs. Subsequent
10 initial recognition these financial liabilitics are measuned at amontised cost using the ¢ffective interest method.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired,

Firmmeial assets and Fabilitics are offses and the net amount §s preseniied in the staement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company has a begal right to offset the ansounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis or o realise the asset and settle the liability simultansowsly,

Non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company comprise of trade and other payables.

De-recogmition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises the financial liability (or part of the financial Rability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished; that is when the obfigation specified in the contract is paid or cuncelled or
dischanged,

Amoriioed cost lor financial assel or lability

The amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial lability is the amount 21 which the financial asset or financial
lsabwlity 15 measured af initial recognition less prepryments of the principal amount, plus or less the cumulative
hminﬁmﬂngﬂmﬂrmﬂw interest method of any difference between that initial andount and the amount s

33 Revenwe recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of the considertion reccived or receivable for goods sold, net of returns, trade
discoumes and volume rebates. The Company recognizes revenoe when a customer obains controls of the goods at

a point in time i.e. on defivery and acknowbedgement of goods.

The goods arc ofien sold with retrospective volume discounts based on aggregate sales over n 12 months period.
Revenee from these sales is recognised hased on the price specified in the contract. net of the cstimated volume
discounts.  Accumulaled experience is wsed to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the expecied value
meethod, and revense is only recognised 10 the exent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will nat
aceur. The related liakility (included in trade and other payables) is recognised for expected volume dscounts
payabie bo customerns in relation to sales made during the yeur,

Mo clement of financing component is deemed present as the sabes are made cither on cash or on credit 1em

36 Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost, less accumulsted depreciation snd scoumulated Impairment
loss. if any. Cost comprises of expenditure that is directly aliribuishle io the scquisition of the asset, Cost includes
the reclassifications lrom equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedpes relating to punchases of
Property, Plant and Equipment. Cost includes expenditares that are directly aftributabde 1o the acquisition / growing
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRER 2020
(Al amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

of the plant till its maturity. Any gain or koes on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised
in the: statement of profit or loss. N

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it s probuble that the furure cconomic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and amount can be measured reliably.

1I:Lh_qnn3rhnm-=§cmdrnm-:m pas that miast be available for the prodwction lines at its plant, and
are classified under property and equipment, and subject to depreciation over the weful life of the asset associated
with those spare parts.

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of cach vear, If the estinated useful life
is different from previowsly estimaied, the carrying amount of the asset is depreciated over the remaining useful
life after reassessment of the year in which the revision was made.

The cost less estimated residual value is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives of the assets by using the following anmual depreciation rates:

Machinery and Equipment 4%
Buildings and roads 3-10%
Mahile cquipment 6.67 %
Vehicles 20 %
Furniture and fixtures 15 %

Land and capital work in progress are nol depreciated,

Capital work in progress at year end includes certain assets. that have been soquired bus are et ready for their
m1m.1hmmummhum&mmmmmmwmwmmm
I'Irh'ﬂﬂl.“.

The assets’ residual values, el lives snd impairment Indicators are reviewed at each finamcial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if considered necessary.

If significant parts of an item of property, plan and equipment have different useful lives then they anc sccounted
for 2 separate items of propeny, plant and squipment

37 Leases

"I'i;tl‘.fwwm“’uhu_lmm s 8 bese or contains a bease. The contract s a besse or contins o lease
ifit gives the right of use a specific asset for a period of ime in exchange for 3 compensation.



CITY CEMENT COMPANY
A Saudi Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2020
(AN amspunts in Sawndi Rivals unless otherwize stated)

Right-of-use assets and bease labilities
Assers and liabilivies arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis,

Rightegf-nse aasely are measared af cost comprising the following:
= the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
= umy lense payments made at or befuore the commencensent date bess amy besse incentives received;
- any initial direct costs; and - restorntion costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently messured al cost kess sccumulated depreciation.

Lease labitiies inclide the net present value uf the foflowing fease payments:
= fined payments (including in-substance fixed paynsents), less any lemse incentives receivahle:
variable lewse: pryments that are based on an index or a rate;
= amounis expected Lo be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
= the exencise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably cenain 1o exercise that option; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that opon.

The bease payments are discounted using the incremental bormowing rate, being the rate that the lessee would bave
i pay to homow the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar value in a similar sconomic environment with
similar rerms and conditions.

Payments associaed with shon-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
25 an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Shori-term beases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
bess, Low-value assets comprise small items relsting o office equipment.

Lease terms are negotisted on an individual basis and contain 3 wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the kease term, management considers all fiacts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
I exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options are only included in the
lease: term il the boase is reasonably certain 1o be extended. In determining the lease werm, the

gencrally considers certain factors including historical lense durations and the costs and issiness disruption
required 1o replace the leased asset,

38 Intangible assets

Intangsbde assets that include software programs, which acquined by the Company and have a fimine wsefial life (5
years). are measured o1 cost bess sccumulsted amortization and any accumulated impairment losses,

The Company applies anmal depreciation mics 1o Its Imangible assets:
= Software licenses 8%

Swhsequent expenditere

Subtequent expenditune arc capitalized only when it increases the future ccomomic benefits embodied in the
mmmhhﬂnumaummfmdhmuynminmmwmm
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Amoriization

Amornization is changed to the cost of intangible asssets less the residual value using the straight-line method aver
their estimated wseful lives, and recognized in the stasement of profit or Joss,

The residual values of intangible assets, their useful lives and impairment indicators are reviewed at the end of
cach financial year and adjusted prospectively whene necessary.

19 Impairment of non-financial asseis

Non-financial assets are reviewed al each reporting date w0 identify circumstances indicating occurrence of
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated In oeder 1o determine the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss (if any).

When it i= not possible 1o estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company cstimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generaling unit to which the ssse heloags. When a reasonable and consistent basis
nﬁﬂuulimmhMrﬂ,MMnmﬂhﬂeﬂmMﬁdqumﬁ,wumﬁ:
they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a ressonable and consisient
dhﬂmhﬂmhﬂnﬁﬁaﬁlﬂqﬁhmﬁmimmmﬁmwﬂtm ot et
available for use ans tested for impairment al lesst annually, and whenever there s an indication that the asset may
be impaired. Recoverable amound is the higher of fair value bets costs to sell and value in wse. I scmsarng, value
in use, the estimaned furure cash flows are discounted 1o their present value nsing discount rte tha reflacts current
market asseasments of the time value of money and the risks specific 10 the asset for which the estimates of fulure
cash flows have nol been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an aset (or cash-genenating unit) Is estimated to be hess than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoversble smount. An impakrment |oss is
recogpmised immediately in the statement of profit or hoss.

\lllmu.nimﬁﬁﬁlmmmmmmmﬂhm{wumﬁmﬁqﬂ}h
increasad 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount dos not
cxceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no imipaimoent loss. been recognised for the
asset (o cash- peneraling mil:hnirmhmwulnruiqnhmtkmhmﬂxdinmﬂmly in the
statement of prodfi or loss.

.11 Inveniorics

Invemories are measured al the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is delermined wsing the weighted
averagt method. Cost comprises all direct manufacturing expenditane based on the nonmal level of activity and
tramespariation and handling costs, Met realisable value conprises estimated selling price less further production
cosds {0 completion and appropriate selling and distribution costs. Allowance is made, where necessary for slow
maoving inventories. Cost of inventories is recognised s an expense and included in eost of sles,

EpumnvulmnMﬂmwurﬂhﬂ:thﬂht&n&luﬂmhwwwmwm
An allowance for ohsolete and slow-meving ivems, if any, is estimated at cach reporting dase.
A1 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of financial position, cash and bank balances include bank bakances, cheques in
hand and deposits with original maturities of three months or lesd, if any.
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312 Zakat provision

Zaknt is provided for in accordance with General Authority of Zakat and Tax (“GAZT™) regulations, Adjustments
nrisng from final ket sssessmenis ane recorded in ibe period in which such ascessments are made.

313 Employee Retirement benefits

Employes Retirement benefits are payabile to all employees employed under the lerms and conditions of the
Labour Laws applicable on the Company. on termination of their employmént contracts.

The Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plan ks calewlated by estimating the amount of future
benefits that employees have eamed in cument and prior periods and discounting thal amound (o amive al presant
wathue,

The Company scts the assumptions used in determining the key elements of the costs of mocting such future
obligations, These assumptions are set after consultation with the Company’s actuaries and include those used to
determine regular service costs and the financing elements related to the linkilities. The caleulation af defined
henefln ohiigation Is performed by a qualified actsary wsing the projecied unin crodit method.

Re-mepsurement of defined benefil liability, which comprise of actoarial gains and losses are recognised
immediacly in the statement of other comprehensive income. The Company determines interest expense on the
defined benefit obligation for the period by applving the discount rate used 1o measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period, taking into account any change in the net defined benefit
obligation during the period a3 a result of contributions and benefit payments, Net imerest expense and other
expenses related 1o defined benefit ane recognised in the statemient of profit or loss.

L4 Provisions

A peovision Is recognised if, 05 a result of past events, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be: estimated refiably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic henefit will be required 10 sestle the
obligation.

315 Stalwlory reserve

In accosdance with Company's by-laws and the Regulations for Companics in Kingdom of Saudi Arsbia, the
Compary is required (o recognise a reserve comprising off 108 of i prafit for the year. This reserve is cumrestly
nod distribitable 1o the Shareholders,

16 Farmings per share

Basic and diluted camings per share (if any) are presented for ordinary shares. Basic carnings per share is
calculated by dividing the peofit or loss anributable 1o ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
avernge number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares
repurchased or issued during the period. The diluted eamings per share are adjusted by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Campany and the weighted average number of shanes outstanding
dlurimg the year with the effect of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.
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17 Segmenial reporiing

Operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it cams revenue
and incurs oosts including income and expenses related o transactions with any other elements of the company.

118 Fairvalue messurement of financial instrumieats

Fair value is the price that would be received Lo sell an asel or paid fo transler o lability in an onderly meaction
hetween markes participanes a the mensurement dase. Uinderlying the definition of fair value is the presumption
that the Company is a going concem and there is no intention or nequiremind to curtail materially the scale of its
operations of o underake a ranssction on adverse lems.

A fimancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange dealer, broker, indusiry Company, pricing service, or regulalory agency. and those prices
represent aciual and regularly oocurming marked transsclions on an amn's length basks.

When measuring the fair vabue the Company ases markel observable dsta as far a8 possible. Fair values ane
categoriond into different levels in a fair value hieranchy based on the inputs wsed inthe valuation lechniques &s
Tollows,

Level 1: Quoted prices (anadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilites that can be scoessed ai the
et dube,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. a5 prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Leved 3: Inpats for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {mohservahble inpues).

LI1%9 Forcign currency transkation

Foreign curmency transactions are transtated into Sawdi Rivals at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time of
the transactions. Monetary assets and lishilities denominated in foreign curmencies at the reporting dale are
wranslased inbo Saudi Riyals af the exchange rates prevailing al that date. Ciains and losses from sartlament and
translation of foreign currency transactions are included in profit or loss.

320 Dividends

Liividends is recognized in the financial smiements when it is appeoved by the General Assembly of shareholders
for anmual disiribations.
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The prepartion of the fimencial statements in accordance with Inlermational Financial Reporting Standands
requires management to use judgments, estimates and assumptions thas affect the amounts of income, expenses,
asscts and liabilitics appearing in the financial Satements, the ing nofes altached 1o the flinancial
statensénts, and the disclosure of contingent assets and lisbilities, However. the uncemainty involved in thess
assumptions and estimates may bead 1o significont adjustments (o the carrying amount of assets or liahilities that
may be alfected in fubune peraods.

I the context of applying the company’s accounting policies. management has made judgments that have a
maserial impacy on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. In addition s the main assumptions that
hawve been considered when assessing the impact of future conditions on the figures appearing ini the financial
statemients and the related disclosures a1 the dae of preparing the financial satements, which have substantial
risks gssocinbed with them that may cowse skgmilficant adjestments (o the carmying, values of rssets and lbalites
during the néxt financial year. The company relied in its estimates and assumptions on the exigting conditions and
available information when preparing the financial statements. However, existing circumstances and i
ahout foreseeable developments may change 2 & resull of merkel changes and carcumstances heyond the control
of the Company, These changes are reflecied in the assumiptions as they oocur,

A) Estimated wseful Bfe of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment deprociased over the estimated wseful life of the asset based on the
expecied wie and obsolescence of the asiel, the maintenance and repair program, technical obsolescence and the
recoverable value considerations of the asser. Management reviews the residual value of property, plant and
equipment and useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges where the mansgemend befieve that the
useiul fife differs than the past estimating.

B) Strategic and reserve spare parts

The Company maintaing strategic and reserve spare pans inventony fior two production lines in #s plant, which
the management aims 1o maintain for longer periods mon: than one year, The management believes that all spare
parts will be provided with futane economic benefits from the future wie of all property, plant and equipment. The

mamgemend reviews Spane parts thei one in reserve equipment. which should be available a3 needed and
Mﬁmmhmﬂmﬁl life of the associated asset.

©) Actuarial valuation of employees' end of service benefits lkabilities

The employees” end-of-service benefits liability is determined according 1o 3 defined unfunded benefit plan and
measured using actuarial evaluation. Actuarial evalustion includes many assumptions that may differ from the
ncivml foture developments. These assumptions include the derermination of the discount rate and funare salary
increases and tumover rate. Dus to the complexities mvolved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
bemcfit libility is highly sensitive to changes in these sssumptions. Thus, all assumgtions ane reviewed once a
year of mare often, as desmed necessany.

D) Provision for rebabilitation of aress sabject to franchise license

The provision for rehabilitation of aress subject to franchise license is recognised ot the present value of the
expected cost of rehabiliation of the site and the company's factory land. The current value of the provision
eslimated al the expected present value of the end of the factory lifespan, and the company relied on the renewal
of the curent quarry license after its expiry at the initial measurement of the current value of the provision,

{All amounts in Sandi Riyals unless otherwise staed)
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Capital
waork in
Progreis

Furniture
and
Mxinres

Vehicles

Buildings  Mobile

Machinery
amd

— _Equipment _and rosds _equipment

Cost:

17,081, 226

(137.917,932) -

I3RAR3RE  LANI9455
5,124,500

16,02 5,685
448456

L2, 1A

125807 447
4,700
A1E4ES

1561976 2,349, 275,750

EATL 459

(1516429}
16, THLETS 65170046 1. 363521, 784

1L160,409 16,474,041
044 12,3010 135,554

126,235,832

1 ASII0556 SRERET.080
11,4%6,550

HIE777.507 25,721,940

Balence s st | January 20019 {Restated) 1) DHNE)

Additions dusing the year
Transferred from Capital work in progress

1L5TS664.593 612,570,029
7.B26,136 .

Bakanceas ot 31 December 2009 (Restated) 3,600,000

Additions during the vear

14, 245974

1,207 204

JE00,000  1SBA799950 612579829 127512380 12,803,218

M5

-

Transferred from Capital work in progress
Ralance as ai 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation:

TEL163,158

TEERE.TES

10617201

67.868,647
755350

IBO2T.S05 4921247

160 E50 602

S00,632 66T

Balance &5 af | Jamary 20019 (Resated)

Depreciation dering the year

2198991 -

(IR

53,882,765

H51,051,523

ILATL561 13495798 -

GTT 66T

72,789,504
4,788 143

196,754,131 77,578,036

ITRETE AT
17575894

55452

Balance as al 31 December 20015 (Restated) -

Depreciation during the vear

- 78,814,924

1209343

14,705,142 -

HITIETH

GO8.TH9.310

Halanee as at.3] December 2020

Mt bock value

SO ETERAT

12050, 228

As at 31 December 2020

AR 4 507

1518235 257
1. 580,00 1,396

2,561,974

2004533 G517.006
2978342

THT.BAR

USSAN 9IS 752981

LOZ1, 14 061 433,700,792 53445718

LO00E0E TSm0

3600 (R
3,500,000

#Az a1 31 December 2019 [Restabed)

1343198 3830604

57.030,200

951757868 426,006,447

135,353,368

Az at | Jamary 2000 (Restated)

respect of ongring projects (2019: SAR 2,561,976 million). The majority

SN e HSEE | R p——

fiar ha s et

Fooen 15751426 H.

« The Company Hﬂﬂmhm%m&nﬂﬁjﬂ.ﬂﬁi 31 December 208 in

il e ewndnal

= The Company uses quarries of raw materials beased from the Mindsiry of Industry and Minersl Resources under = license of raw maerials query for a 30-year Hijri
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 1hecenm
(AN amounts in Seudi Rivals wiless otherwise stated) m:.“JI h;mg |_hm-lmg
nuary Il
6. Risht-of - use aseeis _(Restated)  _ (Restated)
Work in progress - Clinker BE250, 144 127.526.712 177,507,461
bensed Finished goods 5,749,234 5.134,445 5,991,621
land buildi Tatal :
m. —boordland = building = Tolal Raw materials 17,762,703 12,414,379 14,976,009
. o~ Spare pars 69,363,977 B8, 40,620 73,191,270
Halance = Diecember 940492 1,723 AXH TOTHLIE0 145, 146,260 213916156 273,666,361
Balunce a5 at 31 Decembser 2020 S49492 1,723,428 TATLAT0 impairment in invensony (3,00, 000) _(1,000,000)
145,146,260 _212.916,136 273.666.361
Accamulabed depreciation: The movement of impairment in inventory is as follow:
Deprocistion 1,800,204 261,714 2,661,918 # ik L -
Bulunce 43 4t 31 Decwmioer 2030 3,400,408 192,571 4892979 imm_ _J.E::éi_
Nt ook value: Balance al the beginning of the year 1,000,000 1,000,000 .
Additions during the vear 2, W00, 00 &
As al 31 Docensber 2020 2,349,064 430,857 3,719,941 Balance at the end of the year 3,000,000 1 (0N, 20K 5
Anar 31 December 2009 4,149,288 1292571 S 1,859
9. Trade receivables
7. lavistnetals is conily imiruments at fair value through OC) Decem
Asmi 31 ber
H-:.;ﬂ L Dm:-l; . 20 1019
EE 22 1__I M T e e
Saudi Arabian Ol Company {Aramca) o Ssudi joint 92,245 2,951,840 2,951,840 Tmf_ 108 SR
m_ckm Frovision for expecied credii losses (1AL 104) {1,250, 004)
G-':;m change i_I'I fair valus 26,735 = 39,760 356 39, 774943
Tonal irvestment in dhares 3138878 2051840
The movement of expecied credit losses provision is as follow:
Un 3 Decemibar 2019, the Baard of Directors approved the Investment in Saudi Arablan O Campany {Arameoo)
dm_mn:iuuamwhnmmmmmurmz,mm.mhmhwmm A3 &t 31 Decomber
and iin accordance with s future flows and plans. 2020 019
Saudi Arabian Cil Compamy (Aramoa) - A Saudi Joint Stock Comgany snnounced the distribution of cash s ey o s Smi il
dividends during 2030 resuhting in dividends amoamicd SAR 104,163, which are included I ether revenues (Mod Aulditions during the yesr m 139957
2). Balance 2 the end of (he year 1,491,104 1,251,104
Thse trade receivables are fully covered by bank guaramiecs smounted SAR 16,500,000, and promissory nodes

amounted o SAR 32,770,000,
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L 13, Statutory reserve
In aceordance with the Companies Law and the Company's Articles of Association (Article 129), the Board of
As at 31 December Director shall ransfer 107% from the net profit of each year end to the statuory reserve, and the ord
assembly meeting of the Company could decide to cease such transfer when it reaches 30% from the share capital,
_ Wxe |19 This reserve Is not available for dividends.
Balance at the beginning of the year 455,540,830 10,193,195 As at 31 December
Purchases during the year E50, 800,000 S22 400,000 200 2019
Sales during the year (829,600 000) (50,171.817) (Raxtated)
Giains on change in fiir value 5057957 1419452 Balance at the beginning of the year 153,421,360 13441 1672
Balance at the end of the year 243 098,817 485,840,630 Addition during the year 22,049,312 19,009,708
Balawce at the end of ihe year 175,470,692 153421380
The irvestments represent units in open bocal imvesiment funds with an objective of providing a reasonabie amount
of income as well as liquidity from short-term investments in Saudi Riyals.
14, Emplovess' end-of-seryice benefits
n The Company’s policy stated that the end-of-serviee benefit is due 10 all employees who complete the qualifying
+ Prepavments and other receivables period of service under the Saudi Labour Law.
Adad 31 Diosesber The annual emphoyee's end of service linhility is based on sctuasial evaluation, and the most recent schusrial
evaluation was conducted by an appointed independent expert by the Company's management, using the sctuarial
2020 1019 methodology of the expected credit unit &3 a1 31 December 2020
Adwvances 1o suppliers 6,549,081 0,850,687
Prenaid 3,109,250 1463219 Az ai 3 December
Refundable insurance 53714 645431 2 i)
others 1,091,232 561,746 Balance at | January 14,069,654 11,541,606
11603307 14,521,083 Inctuded in prafit or lexs satement
" Current service cost 2 MGT 493 2,131,07%
Cash and csh equivalents
Intcrest cost (Mote 23) 478,373 531,656
As ot 3 December
Included in OCT
i 2009
Acterial loszes FIEI3T 1,334 857
Cash ar bank = current accounis 49,948 041 68,412,628 ;
: ks (442.887) (1,479,553
Cash in hand 5247 45,156
17,347,975 14,068,654
50,061,188 68,455,784
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Agtuarial stsmmptions

pmmnm.mmmemﬂmmmmmmmummmm The fellowing
Imporiant wEsuEmpons:

A at 31 December

2020 e
Financial assuniption e=Year 9%-"fear
Discount rae 4275 .45
Salary increass el Sad
Demingraphic nsum piioms:
Withdrawal rates From 5 to 20 Froem 5 wo 20
Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

Sensitiviy in defined benefit obligation

Th:m'rll?'rl_:.- analyses are based on o change in an assumption while holding all ather sssumptions constant. In
pu:ﬁ?mﬂnuuﬂlmyww.-ﬂﬂm‘uinmnihmmmhmm When calculating the
mdﬂumﬂqﬂmmumqﬂﬂmmmpmmﬂmmmﬂm
nrﬂnmmw bu:sw;#ﬂ ﬂ;pmjmndmitmdllmnhdnhndnnhrqﬁig
perad) asw £m refirement benelils recognised i SLatemEnt

fimemcial position as described below: " o e o

EMOLOYEES® END OF SERVICE

Kemsonn e BENIFITS LIARILITIES
potential chanpes
Increase Décrease
Driscount mabe =1 +) {1%4) (1,757,798) 2 140,831
Salary incresse =1 +) [1%8) LIILETS (1,799 818)
Withdrawal rates (= +) (20%%) (311,TET) ] i el
Mortality rate (=74} (20%) (4.292) 4,301
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15, Lemse linbility
As at 31 December
2020 o9
Muosr-curredt portion of lexse lishility = 1 ERD 552
Carrent partion af lese Hability LA13,041 2,198,704
T A13,041 5,081,256

The amount of inténest expense related to the lease lisbility for the year ended 31 December 2000 amousnted Sadi
Riyals 208,101 (31 December 2019: Ssudi Rivals 287,735), (Mode 23).

I Provision rilitation o
Thee provision movement is as follow:
Az ot 31 December As al
Toza 2019 1 Jamuary 2019
{Restated) (Restuted)
Fimancial inipact of the mitksl mesurement of . 5733514
provision
Balance at the beginning of the year 6,201,368 5,962,854 -
Effective imerest (Nose 23) 248,056 38504 220,340
Balance at the end of the year 6,449,424 6,201,368 5,962,834
17, Accruals and othvr pavables
Asmi 3] December
2030 119
Accrucd expenses 14,206,204 QAT2 215
Accrued quany fees 19,030,595 19,156, 506
Accrual for govemmental suthorities 170,248 302,386
Provision for vacation and travel tickets 2,608,243 2462,350
Board and commitier members’ bomses (Mot 30) 1, 00,000 1,400,000
Advances from costumers LTed 1M 3011074
Retention held from subcontractors 77047 200, 286
Valoe add wx (VAT)™ BY55628 1,961,072
Others 139,969 787,034
20,782,165 38,953,343

* The VAT inspection usil 2019 was setthed, the resulied tx differences o Bk B
the Company paid it in November 2020, amounted to Saudi Riyals 8,256, and
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I8. Provision for Zakat 19. Sales
A} The main elements of Zakat base ore us follows: Fﬁmw
As wl 31 December i 2019
2020 2019 {Restated)
Ordinary portiand censent 20,207,070 455,892,136
et prodit for the year before zakat 237,146,893 195,925,985 p A
& reslilianl
Non-current assets (1,494,433,942) (1,578,224,999) ulphat EARNN SLALAIT 35460810
Non-current liabilities 17,000,000 17,552,206 Expers chanie G el
5 ﬂ L |
Equity 1,624,251,802 2,066.229,693 572,720,687 531,377,516
Provision for expected credit bosses 1.492,104 1,251,104
Provision for zakat : HALY 20. Sclling and marketing ¢xpenses
Impainment in inventony 3,000, 200 3,500,000 For the year ended
Prepayments . 2,286 3 Decemiber
Zakat hase 36,456,557 706,605, 134 e {ﬂfm
Zalkai rate 1.5% 9.711.421 17,665,128 Salaries, wages and employes™s henefits AXI17819 3,208,633
B) The movement in Zakat perovision is as follows: Fransportation expenses 1005827 1,048,053
As at 31 Docember Advertising and promotion 762,092 136,930
o o0 H_l.;!l Depreciation 150,532 QR A16
Imlm:uﬂuhguwngnll}:ym 11,656,243 13,161 k43 Sakes depanment expenses 65, o7 0T
Paid during the year (11,656,243) (12,990,984) thers RIBA13 £79.274
Lakat dilTerences - 3917415) 8,740,189 6638575
Additions during the year %711,421 15,4032, T
Balance at the rnd of the year 9,711,421 11,656,243

C) During 2019, the Company received a final Zakat assessment for the years from 2006 (o 2016,

1) During the year 2020, the Company received a final Zakil ussessment for 2017 and 201 %,

E) The Company submitted the financial statesnents and zakat retamns for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the due amount and obtained u contificate valid wntil 30 Apil 2021 P iy
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1. General and sdmintstrative expenses

Sukarics, wages and emplovee’s benefits
CGovernmental fees

Dunationg

Depreciation

Board of directors” remuneration (Mot 300
Profissional and consulting fees

Foard of direclors” sttendance allowance (Note 30)
Bank charges

Subseriptions and fiees
Repair and maintenance

Services

Withholding tax

Renits

Others

2. Other income

Fevenue from envimamental services

Income from bank deposits

Gain on foreign currency translation differences
Setilement of contractons” guarantes relention
Dividends on investments ai fair value through OCI
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For the year ended 31 December
2020 e
19,852 455 21,399,386
1.638.133 5259
I614.824 o
1,582,459 1,135,909
1A, D 1,400,000
THE, 145 1734, 761
234,400 231,000
187,082 105,111
150248 M5 830
139,593 83371
114,528 115428
41,71 174,230
- 41925
358,791 i
ZB,172.57% 29,442 396

For the year énded 31 December

Hing
020 __(Kestaled)

40013668 LAETATa
1,951,488 5,631,638
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23, Financs cost
For the year ended 31 December
9
I (Restated)
Imtcrest cost on employees end of service lability 478,373 531,656
Interest cost on lease Hability 208,101 H7.735
Irmenest cost of provision for rehabaliisiion of
it ion of areas subject 1o 248,056 238514
934,530 1,057,905

4. Earmings per shure

Bagic camings per share was caloulated by dividing the net profil by the weighted
| ot ividing the year's net profit by the weighted sverage number of

For the year ended 31 December

2009
2020 (Restaned)
et profit for the year 220453,117 190,097 053
Share Share
Weighted avernge number of shares after diluted impact 180,193,443 189,200,000
SAR [ Share SAR / Share
Basic and dilubed earmings per share from the net profit of the year 1,22 1,00

The Company reduced its share capital from Sawdi Riyals 1,892,000,000 to Saudi Rivals 1,400,000,000, af a
reduction rate of 26 % of the Company’s share capital. Consequently, reducing the number of shares of the
Cmfnu_n 1 5%, 2060, (M) shares 1o 140,000,000 shases by cancelling 49,200,000 ordinary shares, at nominal
value of Saudi Rivals 10 of each share, and a wotal value of Saudi Riyals 492,000,000, and compensated the eligible
sharcholders, whe are entithed 1o this reduction, a1 the nominal value of the share a1 Saudi Riyals 10 aof each
mmrummumHMMannrmmmmummmmmm

accordingly the welghted average number of shares has been
shares as a result of the capital’s reduction. calculated, after the reduction cffect, at 180,193,443
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15, Dividends

2501 On 29 Jume 2020, the sharcholders in their ordinary General Assembly Meeting approved dividends of SAR
140,000,000 (SAR | per sheare) which was paid on 5 November 2020,

252 The Board of Directors have propused, for sharcholder™s approval at the General Assembly Metting, a
dvvidend of SAR 73,630,000 million (SAR 0.40 per share) and 4% of Company s share capsta! for the year
endad 31 December 20U which was pasd on 4 April 2020,

26. Financial faciliies

The Company has available financial facilities from bocal banks amounted to Ssudi Rivals 90,7 million guarantesd
by promissory node, the Company has nol used unlil the date of the financial satements, except for whal was
mentioned in Mote 27, and there are no obligarions as a result of nol using these Ficilities.

2. Comtingent liahilitics
Emﬁmluﬂlmw benvers of credit are SAR 7,200,000 for the purchase of raw materials s a1 31
The contingent Kabilities against lefters of gusraniee are SAR 174,200 as at 3| December 2020,

28, General

As disclosed in the financial statensents for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company received a statement
of prosecution. The Company has assigned an extemal legal advisor to deal with this matter and make the

nmucgqrd:l‘mn.ﬁ: enalter is s8ill being in the phase of exchanges comespondences, and there are no updates
an Uns matber,

9. Sepmeni reporting
For ithe yeur cnded st For the year enided o
A1 Deeember 2020 31 December 0070 .
Hevenue Trom Kevenue [rom
environmental envinamental
Cement sales EErvited Cemeni saks sErvices
Geographical area {Mode: 19) (Note: 22) (Nate: 19) (Note: 22)
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 572729687 4,013,668 531352948 2ARTATG
Bahrain Kingdom - - 24,570 .
Total 572,719,687 4,003,668 531377 518 2ABTATE
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30. Trunsaclions wilh related pariie

Transactions with related parties consist mainly in silaries, allowances and bey executive personael remundration.
Key monsgement persomnel are (hose who exercise authority and responsibility in directly or indirectly planning,
directing and monitoring the company’s activities, including the members of board mecting.

Members of the Board of Directors do nol receive any remunération for their role in managing the Company unless
approved by the General Assembly. Members of the Board of Directors reccive an nfiendance allovwance for Boand

and Board Commitlee meetings. Executive Directors receive fived remuneration as a result of their direct duries
and responsibilities.

The lollowing table illustrates detaiks of rensuneration and compensation paid 1o Directors and Key Management
Persornel.

For the vear ended ai
31 December

Relwbed purtics Maiure of ihe irmmsaction 2020 e

Members afl Boand of the directors Salaries, wapes, amd equivabent and board
and Key Management Personnel remuncration and atendance allowances 8323087 6601832

31, Financial instruments and risk management
The Company’s activilies expose il to a varsely of fimancial risks, market risk, credit risk, and hiquidity risk.

Financial instraments in the Company"s statement of financial position inclode imvestmenns = far value through
profit or boss and other comprehensive income, cash and cash equivalents, other assels, accound receivable, and
ohaer lishilities.

a) Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that valoe of a financial instrument will Muctuate a5 a result of changes in market
Ftnmdtmmmhﬁmﬂmmmﬁﬁpﬁnmdfhrﬂpmmhwmﬂﬂﬂhh
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
n:mﬂishwﬂmﬁﬂﬁﬂ:ﬂumﬁﬂhm:ﬂmmuﬁhqﬁmﬁm
e retarm.

Commbsion rale rish

Comemission rate Risk i the exposune associated with the effect of lluctustions in e prevailing commission
rabes an e Company s limncil position and ceh Nows,
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Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the valuc of financinl instruments will fluctumde due fo changes in foregn exchangs
rabes. Currency risk arises when fiture commercial transactions and recognized xssets and liabilites are
denominated in currency that is mot the Company™s cummency. The Company exposure {o foreign currency risk s

primanly limited o transsctions in Lnited State Dollars (=USD™) and Euro.

The fluctuation in ¢xchange rates agains USD and EL'R are monitored on & continuogs basis. Chantitstive data

regarding the Company s exposure (o currency risk is represented by:

U5, dollar Euro
31 December 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 339967 1,817,757
Advanees to suppliers 270,829 545,813
Trade payshies (670, M) {164,995)
1,919,590 2,198,578
31 December 2019
Carsh and cash equivalents 6,916,138 4,688,583
Advances 1o suppliers 141,193 622414
Trade payables {714,518) (99,547)
6,342,835 5208422
b) Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk that one party to financial insirements will fail 1o discharpe an obligation and cause the otber
party to incur 4 financial boss. The Company & exposed lo credit risk on the financial instrements as follows:

As al 31 December

Juzo 9

Cash wnd cash equivalents 50,061,158 68,455,784
Trade receivahies 41,260,502 41,026,047
91321690 109,481,831

The carying amsnant of financial assels represents the maximum eredit exposure.,

The Company manages credit risk relating to trade receivables in sccondance with the specified policies and
procedures. The Company limits credit sk relating 10 wrade receivables by semting credit limits for each customer
and continuously monitoring outstanding trade neceivables.,

The movement on the provision of expected credin bosses related 1o the trade receivables is as follows:

Balance as at | January
Addilions during the year

Bralance as at 31 December

) Liguidity risk

As at 31 December
2020 019
1,251,104 LOTE 147
240,000 239,957
1431004 1,251,104

Liquaidhity risk i the risk tha an cnierprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds 1o meet commitments associased
with financial instrunwents. Liquidity risk mey resubt from the insbility 10 sell a financial asset quickly at an amount
close io its fuir value. Following are the contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of financial
lishilities. The anounts are grossed and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments,

Less thunone  From | year 10 5

As at 51 December 2020 Book valee YEar Vi Total
L linbility 2A13.041 213,841 - 2A15041
Trade payables 16,744,015 1, 744,005 - 16,744,015
Accrul and other payables 50,752,165 S0.7SLI6S 2 50,752 165

65,505,221 69,900 22| - 69,909,321
Leme Habiliny 5,081,256 2198104 2882 557 2,081,234
Trade payable: 15,124,667 15,124,567 - 15,124,667
Accrual and other payables 38953343 38953343 : 38,953,343

9159265 56,276,714 2,852,552 59,159,266

mﬁur:t &m;ﬁnhﬂimm: regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and other credit
avai 0 Compamy”s future commitments, The Company” of sabes requine amsunts
to be paid cither on a cash on delivery or on a terms basis. s
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5 a E g B ag A NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= ! 3 E 4 |¥ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
3 . (ANl amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise staled)
; : . s
s E g The Company restated certain amounts and balances inchsded i the prior vear linancinl stadements o the
z E. transactions (o which these balances relote, had not been accounted for comectly, snd accordingly sdjusted
E' ; : i in accordance with the requirements of IAS § “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors™.
£ g 2 The details of each of such restatements have been summarized below:
§s
BE & % g 31 December 2019 Keported (1,234,5) (2,6} Restated
=7 = , - : Statement of Minanclal position
% E g Property, plant and equipment 1AS0.063366 17439885  SOT0606 1518223857
F, a = g 2 e : Capital work in progress 2561876 . (1.561,976)
% E E g § E g § § E Spare parts 116,999,250 (116999.250) -
a'“ ¢ “ % % .E Inventories 075,536 - SRBH0EN 212916156
= g i~ . E. g Prepayments and other receivables 14589,190 - (468,107) 14,521,083
g‘g i : i 3 g § 2 . Siatuary reserve (152371,733)  (1,049647) - (153,421,380)
i3 a & 8 |8 .E f Oher reserves - . 1417014 1417014
- E% 3 Retained caming (201458366) (10366583)  (LAIT014)  (13242.163)
EES 1 E E E E -E E Curent portion of lease liability (2.666811) - 468,107 (2,198,704)
i E 3 33 il 5 ¥ Provision for rehabllittion of areas.  (600.000)  (5.601,363) (6:201,368)
. T 3 ; i
ig ;E ic § ica 11 R s
E .é;% i E.E =£ = ‘2 " E E Zakat provision (11,233956)  (422.287) (11.656.243)
= =
ghagg it Hi ] g
= ,gil BE Eg £ Eo i Statement of profit or los
O3 Edg| ¢ 28 Bo 2F 2o 3
E_ EE: i #.h F Eé S E‘é i & Coed of sules JI00TT2S  (9R12410) 300,264,814
. i E E & E! =E = - oE = B E Fiirnee cost £19.391 238514 1057905
Eg £ g ! iE E §E E EH é : Zakat expense 14980512 422287 15,402,799
o Ié E = g = '5 E g '3 IE. K4 0y

dyann | 75
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Previoushy Restatement He-classification
1 Janmary 29 Reported {12 3,4.5) (] Rsiated
Statement of financial position
Property, plant and equipment 1390629598  7,02T4T4 182,174,324 |, 580,031,396
Capital work in progress 135,353,388 - (135,353,388) -
Sparc parts 1ZImaas - (121012209 -
Invenbores 108, A TS, R 75,191 269 273, bislh, 361
Retained eaming (115498021 (2264,620) (7147) (117,834,788)
Other reserves - - 1147 12,147
Prowision for retabalitation of ansas - (5,962,854) - (5,962 854)
subject 1 franchise leerse
31 Decenber 2009 Statement of cash  Previoasly
Mows __Reported  Restatement  Re-classification Restated
Med proffit fior the: vear before miort 95925088  93TIE07 - 5499882
Depreciation 83,983,649 (77124110 - £1,271,23%
Provision of obsclescence of spare
pans 1,500,000 (1500000 -
Provision for factory dismantling 400000 (400, CH0CT) g
Provision for site rehabilitation 200,000 {200,000} ' .
Finance cost BI19.391 1RSS4 . 1057903
Inventories 53,399,550 . 6,350,649 59,750,205
Prepayments and olher receivables 3.840,248 - A48 107 4 308 385
Change in gpare pans inventory 2512955 - (2.512,953) -
Purchase of property, plant and
cquipmend and capital work in
progrese (2,117,012) - (8.964.214) (17,081,226)
Capital work in progress (5,126,520) - 516,520 B
Repayments of hease liability ZAanmy - {468,107) (2.879.309)
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The impact of calculating the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as a result of the change in the weful
lifi; of property, plant and equipment in 2019, 1 comply with the requiremems off LAS (8) “Accounting Policles,
Changes in Accounting Estimabes and Ennars®,

Bestatement (21
The inpact of reclassifying ihe spare panis account in accordance with ihe regquirements of 1A% 16 info stmicgic
and reserve spare parts that have been classified into machinery and equipment, and consumable spare parts that

have been clesified into inventory, The Comgany depreciates spare parts included in the machinery and cquipment.
Thiz amendmend is retrospectively in order to comply with the requirensents of IAS (8) "Accounting Policies,
Chamges in Acoounting Estimabes and Emars™,

Bestatement (3}

The imgmact of recognizing the provision for the rehabilitation of arcas subject 1o a franchise license at the presem
vihue of the expscied cost of rehabilitation the site and the plan land of the Company. The present valoe of the
provision was estimaied end the provision was recorded at the expected present value at the end of the factory’s
useful life, and this requires retrospective adjustment as & result of non-recognition of this provision initially.

Restatement (4)

The calculation of 10% of net income for 2019 was corrected to form the regular reserve for 2019, which was
calculated on the basis of comprehensive income rather than the net profi.

Restatement (5)
The calculation of the 2019 Zakst provision has been correcied,

Re<classification (6}
Som: comgrarison figures for the finsncial year ended 31 December 2019 and the opening balance of 2019 amounts
have been reclissified to be consistent with the cument presentation of financial statensents.
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3. Sipwilicanl evenls

In response to the spread of the Covid-19 in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and its resulting disruptions wo the
soial and economic activities in those markets, the management of the Company had proactively assessed its
impacts on its operations and took 4 series of preventive measures, including the creation of on-going crishs
muanagemsent tenms ond processes, o ensure the health and safety of its emplovees, custoners. and the wider
community as well s to ensure the continuity of supply of its products throughout its markets. The management -
of the Company believes that the Covid-19 pandemic has had no maicrial effect on the Company's reponed ' - ™
firancisl results. ATACH '
The Company continues to monitor the Covid=19 situation closely although al this lime management is not aware
of any factors that are expected to change the impact of the pandemic on the Company's operations during 2021,

M. Subsequent evenls

Thene are no subsequent cvems have occurred after the end of the year until the approval of this fimancial statements,
which requine adjustment or disclosure.,

35, Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 RAJAB 1442 (H) Comesponding 1o
28 FERRUARY 2021 (G) o
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